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Ladies and Gentlemen:

Accompanying this letter for filing pursuant to Section 33 of the Investment
Company Act of 1940, as amended, is a copy of the following documents:

e Consolidated Amended Complaint filed by plaintiffs in the case styled
as Robert L. Baker, et al., v. American Century Investment
Management, Inc. and American Century Investment Services, Inc.

e ACIM’s Answer to plaintiff’s Consolidated Amended Complaint
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI

CENTRAL DIVISION >
ROBERT L. BAKER et al., )
- )
Plaintiffs, )
) .
V. ) CASE NO. 04-4039-CV-C-ODS

) 2
AMERICAN CENTURY INVESTMENT )
MANAGEMENT, INC. and AMERICAN )
CENTURY INVESTMENT SERVICES, INC., )
' )
Defendants. )

ANSWER TO CONSOLIDATED AMENDED COMPLAINT

Defendants American Century Investment Management, ‘Inc. (“ACIM”) and
American Century Investment Services, Inc. (“ACIS”) (collectively, “Defendants™), answer
Plaintiffs’ Consolidated Amended Complaint (“Complaint”) as follows:

1.  Answering Paragraph 1 of the Complaint, admit that Plaintiffs purport to
bring this actioh as a derivative action on behaif of the Fundsl under Sections 36(b) and 12(b) of
the Investment Company Aqt of 1940, 15 U.S.("J.v §§ 80a-35(b) and 80a-12(b), but deny that
Plaintiffs have any claim under those sections. |

2. Admit the allegations in Paragraph 2 of the Complaint.

3. Admit the allegaﬁons in Paragraph 3 of the Complaint, except deny that
venue is proper in the Central Division of this District. |

4. Deny the allegations in Paragfaph 4 of the Complaint.

5. Paragraph 5 of the Complaint contains conclusions of law to which no

answer is required. Defendants reserve all rights to challenge Plaintiffs’ statements of legal



conclusions and deny that Plaintiffs have completely or accurately characterized the legal
principles applicable to this case. Defendants deny the allegations in Paragraph 5 to the extent
they are factual, except deny knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth
of the averment that Plaintiffs are shareholders in the Funds.

6. Deny the allegations in Paragraph 6 of the Complaint.

7. Deny the allegations in Paragraph 7 of the Complaint.

8. Deny the allegations in Paragraph 8 of th;a Complaint.

9. Deny the allegations in Paragraph 9 of the Complaint, except admit that
Defendants charge distribution feés for marketing, selling, and distributing mutual fund shares to
new .shareholders pursuant to distribution plans that Defendants have adopted with respect to the
Funds pursuant to Rule 12b-1, 17 C.F.R. § 270.12b-1. |

10.  Paragraph 10 of the Complaint contains conclusions of law to which no
answer is required. Defendants reserve all rights to challengé Plaintiffs’ statements of legal
conclusions and deny that Plaintiffs have completely or accurately characterized the legal
principles applicable to this case, and deny the allegationé therein to the extent they are factual,
except admit that Congress enacted the Investment Company Act of 1940 in 1940.

11.  Admit that a portion of Section 36(b) is quoted in Paragraph 11 of the
Complaint and deny any remaining allegations.

12.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 12 of the Complaiﬁt.

13.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 13 of the Complaint.

14.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 14 of the Complaint.

: For purposes of this Answer to Consolidated Amended Complaint only, Defendants adopt
Plaintiffs’ definition of “Funds” as set out in Paragraph | of the Complaint.



15.  Paragraph 15 of the Complaint contains conclusions of law to which no
answer is required. Defendants reserve all rights to challenge Plaintiffs’ statements of legal
conclusions and deny that Plaintiffs have completely or accurately characterized the legal
: principles applicable to this case, and deny the allegations to the extent that they are factual,
except admit that a majority of the Funds’ boards are comprised of directors who are not
interested persons of the funds (the “Independent Directors”) and that they have approved the
fees paid to Defendants in a xﬁanner meeting all legal requirements.

16.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 16 of the Complaint.

17. Paragraph 17 contains conclusions of law to which no answer is required.
Defendants reserve all rights to challehge Plaintiffs’ statements of legal conclusions and deny
that Plaintiffs have completely or accurately characterized the legal principles applicable to this
case. | |

18.  Paragraph 18 éf the Complaint contains conclusions of law to which no
answer is required. Defendants reserve all rights to challenge Plaintiffs’ statemeﬁts of legal
conclusions and deny that Plaintiffs have completely or accurately characterized the legal
principles applicable to this case, and deny the allegations to the extent that they are factual.

19.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 19 of the Complaint.

20.  Paragraph 20 of the Complaint contains conclusions of law to which no
answer is required. Defendants reserve all rights to challenge Plaintiffs’ statements of legal
conclusions and deny that Plaintiffs have completely or accurately characterized the legal
principles applicable to thxs case, and respectfully refer the Court to the rules cited in Paragraph
20 for the exact content and context thereof. Defendants deny the allegations to the extent they
are factual, except admit that certain classes of certain Funds have adopted Rule 12b-1

Distribution Plans.



21.  Deny thé allegations in Paragraph 21 of the Complaint.
22.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 22 of the Complaint.
23.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 23 of the Complaint.
24.  Answering the allegations in Paragraph 24 of the Complaint, admit that
Plaintiffs purport to seek relief as set forth in the Compléix;t, and otherwise deny the allegations.
25. - Deny the allegations in Paragraph 25 of the Complaint, except admit that
the requirements of F.R.C.P. 23.1 do ﬁot apply to actions under Section 36(b) of the ICA.
| 26.  Admit that Plaintiffs do not seek the relief described in Paragraph 26.
27.  Deny knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth
of the allegations in Paragraph 27 of the Complaint.
28. Deny knowledge or ipformation sﬁfﬁcient to form a belief as to the truth
of the allegations in Paragraph 28 of the Complaint.
29.  Deny knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to the ﬁuth
of the allegat?ons in Parégraph 29 of the Complaint.
- 30.  Deny knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth
of the allegations in Paragraph 30 of the Complaint.
31. Deny knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth
of the allegations in Paragraph 31 of the Complaint.
32.  Deny knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth
-of the allegations in Paragraph 32 of the Complaint.
| 33.  Deny knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth
of the allegations in Paragraph 33 of the Complaint.
34.  Deny knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth

of the allegations in Paragraph 34 of the Complaint.



35._ Admit the allegations in Paragraph 35 of the Complaint.

36.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 36 of the Complaint, except admit tﬁat
ACIMisa Dela\%rare corporation and is registered as an investment adviser under the Investment
Advisers Act of 1940.

37.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 37<of the Complaint, except admit that
ACIS is the distributor and principal underwriter of the Funds, and is registered as a broker-
dealer under the laws of Missouri.

38.  Paragraph 38 of the Complaint states conclusions of law to which no
answer is required. Defendants respectfully refer the Court to the case described in Paragraph 38
for the exact content and context thereof. Defendants reserve all rights to challenge Plaintiffs’
statements of legal conclusions and opinions and deny that Plaintiffs have completely or
accurately characterized the legal principles applicable to this case.

39; Paragraph 39 of the Complaint states conclusions of law to which no
answer is required. Defendants respectfully refer the Court to the case described in Paragraph 39
for the exact content and coﬁtext thereof. Defendants reserve all rights to challenge Plaintiffs’
statements of legal conclusions and opinions and deny that Plaintiffs have completely or
accurately characterized the legal principles applicable to this case. Defendants deny the
allegations in Paragraph 39 to the extent they are factual.

40.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 40 of the Complaint.

41.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 41 of the Complaint.

42. Deny the alleéatiops in Paragraph 42 of the Complaint.

43. Deny the allegations in Paragraph 43 of the Complaint.

44,  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 44 of the Complaint.

45.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 45 of the Complaint.



46.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 46 of the Complaint.

47. Deny the allegations in Paragraph 47 of the Complaint.

48.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 48 of the Complaint.

49.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 49 of the Complaint.

50. Deny the allegations in Paragraph 50 of the Complaint.

51.  Paragraph 51 of the Complaipt states conclusions of law to which no
answer is required. Defendants reserve all rights to challenge Plaintiffs’ statements of legal -
conclusions and opinions and deny that Plaintiffs have completely-or a_ccﬁrately characterized the
legal principles applicable to this case. befendénts deny the allegations in Paragraph 51 to the
extent they are factual. |

52. Deny the allegations in Paragraph 52 of the Complaint.

53. Deny knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth
of the allegations in Paragraph 53 of the Complaint.

54.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 54 of the Complaint.

55.  Admit the allegations in Paragraph 55 of the Complaint.

56.  Admit the allegations in Paragraph 56 of the Complaint.

57. - Admit the allegations in Paragraph 57 of the Complaint.

58.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 58 of the Complaint.

59.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 59 of the Complaint.

60. Deny the allegations in Paragraph 60 of the Complaint.

61. Deny the allegations in Paragraph 61 of the Complaint.

62.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 62 of the Complaint.

63.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 63 of the Complaint.



64.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 64 of the Complaint.

65.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 65 of the Complaint and respectfully
refer the Court to the statute and case described in Paragraph 65 for the exact content and context
thereof.

66.  Paragraph 66 of the Complaint states conclusions of law to which no
answer is required. Defendants reserve all rights to challenge Plaintiffs’ statements of legal
conclusions and opinions and deny that Plaintiffs have completely or accurately characterized the
legal principles applicable to this case. Defendants deny the allegations in Paragraph 66 to the
extent they are factual.

- 67.  Paragraph 67 of the Complaint states conclusions of law to which no
answer is required. Defendants reserve all rights to challenge Plaintiffs’ statements of legal
conclusions and opinions and deny that Plaintiffs have completely or accurately characterized the
legal principles applicable to this case. Defendants deny the allegations in Paragraph 67 to the
extent they are factual. |

68.  Deny knowledge or information sufficient to form a basis as to the truth of
the allegations in Paragraph 68 of the Complaint.

69. Deny the allegations in Paragraph 69 of the Complaint.

70. Deny the allegations in Paragraph 70 of the Complaint.

71.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 71 of the Complaint.

ANSWER TO COUNT ONE
‘ 72.  Repeat and re-allege the foregoing responses to Paragraphs 1 through 71
of the Complaint.

73.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 73 of the Complaint.




74.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 74 of the Complaint.

75.

Admit that Plaintiffs seek the relief described in Paragraph 75 of the

Complaint, but deny that Plaintiffs are entitled to such relief.

76.

of the Complaint.

77.

78.

79.

ANSWER TO COUNT TWO

Repeat and re-allege the foregoing responses to Paragraphs 1 through 75

Deny the aliegations in Paragraph 77 of the Complaint.
Deny the allegations in Paragraph 78 of the Complaint.

Admit that Plaintiffs seek the relief described in Paragraph 79 of the

Complaint, but deny that Plaintiffs are entitled to such relief.

80.

of the Complaint.

81.

82.

83.

ANSWER TO COUNT THREE
Repeat and re-allege the foregoing responses to Paragraphs 1 through 79
Deny the allegations in Paragraph 81 of the Complaint.

Deny the allegations in Paragraph 82 of the Complaint.

Admit that Plaintiffs seek the relief described in Paragraph 83 of the

Complaint, but deny that Plaintiffs are entitled to such relief.

ANSWER TO COUNT FOUR

84.  Repeat and re-allege the foregoing responses to Pa}agraphs 1 through 83

of the Complaint.




85.  Deny knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth
of the allegations in Paragraph 85 of the Complaint.

86. Deny the allegations in Paragraph 86 of the Complaint.

87.  Deny the allegations in Paragraph 87 of the Complaint.

88.  Admit that Plaintiffs seek the relief described in Paragraph 88 of the
Compléint, but deny that Plaintiffs are entitled to such relief. |

Defendants deny each and every averment in the Complaint not specifically
admitted herein.

AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES

Defendants assert the following affirmative defenses:

First Affirmative Defense

The Complaint fails to state a clatm upon which relief can be granted.
Second Affirmative Defense
Plaintiffs’ claims are barred in whole or in part by the applicable statute of limitations.

Third Affirmative Defense

The claims of Plaintiffs are barred in whole or in part by the doctrines of laches, waiver,
estoppel, unclean hands, and/or ratification.
Fourth Affirmative Defense
Plaintiffs have not suffered any losses or damages from their investments in the Funds.

Fifth Affirmative Defense

Any injury sustained by Plaintiffs on behalf of the Funds was not directly or proximately

caused by the alleged breach of fiduciary duty as set forth in the-Complaint.




Sixth Affirmative Defense
At the time Plaintiffs first became shareholders of the Funds, they were or should have
been aware that an Advisory Fee Schedule and Distribution Plan equal to or greater than that
now in effect had been approved by a majority of the Board of Directors of the Funds. Plaintiffs
were fully informed of all material facts concerning investing in the Funds, including the level
and calculation of the Fund advisers’ compénsation and the distribution plan, and knowingly
entered into the investment. On this basis, Plaintiffs are estopped and precluded from
maintaining this action on behalf of the Funds.
Seventh Affirmative Defense
Defendants aéted at all times and in all respects in good faith and with due care.
Eighth Affirmative Defense |
The Independent Directors of the Funds exercised good faith business judgment in
approving the management agreements and distribution plans in effect when Plainti‘ﬁ's became
shareholders, and in subsequently approving renewals of the management agreements and
distribution plans containing the advisory fee scﬁedule currently in effect.

Ninth Affirmative 'Defense

Some or all of the Plaintiffs lack standing to bring the claims asserted in the Complaint.

Tenth Affirmative Defense

Plaintiffs are not entitled to a trial by jury.

Eleventh Affirmative Defense

Defendants hereby give notice that they intend to rely upon such other and further
defenses as may become available or apparent during pre-trial proceedings in this case and

hereby reserve all rights to assert such defenses.
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Dated: January 27, 2005

Respectfully submitted,

ROUSE HENDRICKS GERMAN MAY PC

By: _ s/Daniel E. Blegen
Randall E. Hendricks MO #24832
Daniel E. Blegen MO #47276

One Petticoat Lane Building

1010 Walnut, Suite 400

Kansas City, Missouri 64106

Tele: (816) 471-7700

Fax: (816)471-2221

MILBANK, TWEED, HADLEY & McCLOY LLP
James N. Benedict
Sean Murphy
Michael A. Berg
Carrie A. Bassel
One Chase Manhattan Plaza
New York, New York 10005-1413
Tel: (212) 530-5000 '
Fax: (212) 530-5219

Attorneys for Defendants American Century Investment

Management, Inc. and American Century Investment
Services, Inc.
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that a copy of the above and foregoing document was ﬁled :
electromcally with the above-captioned court, with notice of case activity generated and sent
electronically by the Clerk of said court (with a copy to be mailed via regular U.S. mail to any
individuals who do not receive electronic notice from the Clerk) this 27th day of January, 2005,
to:

Wm. Dirk Vandever, Esq.
Dennis Egan, Esq.

The Popham Law Firm, P.C.
323 W. 8™ Street, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64105

Guy M. Bumns, Esq.

Jonathan S. Coleman, Esq.

Becky Ferrell-Anton, Esq.

Johnson, Pope, Bokor, Ruppel & Burns, LLP
100 North Tampa Street, Suite 1800

Tampa, FL 33602

Michael J. Brickman, Esq.
James C. Bradley, Esg.

Nina H. Fields, Esq.

Patrick Richardson, Esq.
Westbrook & Brickman LLC
174 East Bay Street
Charleston, SC 29401

Gene P. Graham, Jr., Esq.

Steven W. White, Esq.

White, Allinder, Graham & Buckley, LLC .
14801 East 42" Street

Independence, MO 64055

s/ Daniel E. Blegen
Attorney for Defendants
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI

CENTRAL DIVISION
ROBERT L. BAKER, et al.,
Plaintiffs,
V.
AMERICAN CENTURY INVESTMENT | - Case No. 04-4039-CV-C-ODS .

MANAGEMENT, INC. and AMERICAN
CENTURY INVESTMENT SERVICES,
INC.,

Defendants.

 CONSOLIDATED AMENDED COMPLAINT
Pla'mtiffs, Robert. L.Baker, Charlyne Van Oosbrée, Don Hélcomb, Linda Bailey, Michael
J. Reilly; Mana I. Reilly,'Leonard Perrié;, and Raymond Hicks, for the use and beneﬁt of the
'American Century Select Fund, Américén Cenfury ‘Growtb Fund, Ameficé.ﬁ Cenfury Giftrust’
Fund, American Century Ultra Fuhd, American Ccntury Intematioﬁal Discovery Fund, American
B Century Value‘Fund 4nd Américan Century Globél Growth Fund, sue Defendants, American
Century Investment Maxﬁagement, Inc. and American Century Investment Services, Inc., and
allege: | -
I. JURISDICTION AND VENUE
1. This action is a derivative action brought by Plaintiffs on behélf of the American
Century Select' Fund, American Cenfury Growth Fund, American Century Giftrust Fund,
American‘ Century Ultra Fund, American Century Imemafiona] Discovery Fund, American

Century Value Fund, and American Century Global Growth Fund (collectively, the “Funds™)




pursuant to §§ 36(b) é.nd 12(b) of the Investment Company Act of 1940 (“ICA”), as amended, 15 .
U.S.C. §§ 80a-35(b) and 80a-12(b). | | |

2. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to15US.C. & 8Qa-43, 15US.C. §
80a-35(b)(S), and 28 U.S.C. § 1331.

3 Vénué is proper in this judiéial district pur;sua.nt to 15 US.C. .§ 80a-43 and 28 U.S.C.
§ 1391(}3)(2)_-(3). Deféndants are inhabitants of or transact buéiness'm tl;is diétriét, a substantial
part of the events or omissions that give rise to Plaintiffs’ claims occirred in this district, and~
Defendants may be found in this district.

4. All conditions precedent have been performed or have occurred.

II. BACKGROUND

5. Plaintiffs are shareholders in various open-end registered investment companies, v
or mutual funds (collectively the “Fuhds”), created, sold, advised, and managed with other funds
as part of a fund family or complex by Defendénté (the “Fuﬁd CQmplex”). Defendants, as the
- underwriters, distributors, advisors, and control persons of the Funds, owé fiduciary and othef
duties to Plaintiffs and all shareholders of the funds in the Fund Complex.

6..  Plaintiffs and other shareholders of the Funds péy Defendants fees fof providing
_ ’pure investment advisory‘ services and administrative services. These fees are based on a
- percentage of the net assets of eacﬁ of the Funds. Defendants typically charge a2 combined fee"
for the pure investment advisory services and the administra;tive services.

7. The pur‘e‘ investment advisory services Defendants provide to the Funds are
identical fo the investment advisory services Defendanfs provide to other clients, such as -
institutional and ;ub-advisory clients, and entail identical costs. In fact, the cost of advisors,



analysts, research data, the p_hysicai plant, and other aspects of Defendants’ investment advisory
services are shared between the mutual funds and the other clients. -

8. Despite the equivalence of the inve_stfneﬁt advisory services Defendants provide '
to the Funds and the other clients, the fees Defendants receive from the Funds that are
attributable to pure iﬁvest’ment advisory Services are much higher than the fees Defgﬁdants or
 their affiliates receive from other clients for the identical services. .

9. Defendants also charge distribution fees for marketing, selling, and distributing
mutual ﬁmd shares to new shareholders pursuant- to distribution plaﬁs that Defendants have
adopted with res}pect to the Funds pursuant to Rule 12b-1, 17 C.F.R. § 270.12b-1 (“Disuibution
Plans™). The distribution féés are based on a percentage of the‘ net assets of each of the Funds.
Defendants purportedly collect these fees in order to grow or stabilize t.he assets of the Funds so
that the Funds can benefit from economies of scale through reduced advisory fees.

Secnon 36(b) of the Investment Company Act of 1940

10, In 1940 Congress enacted the Investment Company Act of 1940, 15 U.S.C. §
80a-] et seq. (the “ICA ). The ICA was designed to regulate and curb abuses in the mutual fund
‘industry and to creaie standards of care applicable to investment advisors such as Defendéms.' In
the 1960s, it became clear to Congress that investment advisorsr to equity mutual funds were
gouging those funds with excessive fees, particularly by not taking economies of écale into
account. As a result, § 36(5), 15 U.S.C,, § 80a-35(b), was added to the ICA in 1970, which
. created a federal cause of action for brcach 6f ﬁduci@ duty,
~ 11.  Section ‘3 6(b) provides in pertinent part:

[T]he investment adviser of a registered investment company shall be deemed to
have a fiduciary duty with respect to the receipt of compensation for services, or

of payments of a material nature, paid by such registered investment company, or
by the security holders thereof, to such investment adviser or any affiliated person

Ul



of such investment adviser. An action may be brought under this subsection byb

the Commission, or by a security holder of such registered investment company

on behalf of such company, against such investment advisers, or an affiliated
person of such investment advisor, or any other person enumerated in subsection
-(2) of this section who has a fiduciary duty conceming such compensation or
payments, for breach of fiduciary duty in respect to such compensation or
payments paid by such registered investment company or by the security holders
thereof to such investment adviser or person. . . .

12. " In the past decade, the assets managed by Defendants within the Fund Compflex

have grown dramatically.

a. In 1993, the Fund Complex (exclusive of money market funds) had average
net assets of approximately $22 billion and fund shareholders paid $203 million, or 91
basis points, in advisory fees: Ten years ‘later, by 2002, the Fund Complex (ex_clusive‘of
money market funds) had significantly grown to (nearly $64 billion 1n average net assets.
In spite of this sizeable increase in assets, advisory fees in 2002 had increased to $597

- million, or 93 basis points. For the Fund Complex as a whole, therefore, advisory fees
actually increased as a percentage of average net assets from 1993 to 2002.

b. In 1993, the American Century Ultra Fund had $6 billion in average net.
assets; by 2002, the fund had grown to $24.4 billion, a more than four fold increase.
Despite this huge increase in assets, advisory fees for the American Century Ultra Fund
decreased only slightly as a percentage of average net assets, from 100 basis points in 1993
to 98 basis points in 2002.

13.  While the Funds have grown dramatically in size, the nature of the services
rendered by Defendants has changed little, if at all. Indeed, advances in computing and
communication technologies in the past twenty years have resulted in exponential efficiencies

that have dramatically reduced the costs of servicing mutual funds in ways Congress could not

have imagined when it enacted ICA § 36(b). Nonetheless, the advisory fees paid to Defendants



have growh dramatically. As-a result, the advisory fees paid to Defendants (and accepted by
them in violation of their statutory ﬁHuCiary duties) are disproportionately large in relationship to
the se{viges rendered to Plaintiffs.

14,  In addition, Defendants, iﬁ violation of their fiduciary duties to Plaintiffs, have
.retainéd excess p;oﬁts .resulting from economies 6f scale. These economies of scale are a
prbduct of the dramatic growth in assets managed by Defendants, caused m part by marketing
programs paid for with the distribution fees charged to Plaintiffs and the other shareholders and
in part by Defendants’ ability to i:vrovide the identical investment advispry services 'they provide
Plaintiffs to other clignts at little or no additional cost. As ésséts under management increase, the.
.cost of providing services to adaitional assets does not increase at the same rate, resulting in
tremendous economies of scaie. In fact, with very largé funds (such as t;xe American Century
Ultré Fund), the cc;st of sefvicing the additional assets approaches zero. A‘ccordingfly, any fees
_' received in connection with the additional assets feprcse_nt almost pure proﬁf. The excess profits

reéulting from economies of scale belong to Plaintiffs and the other shé.reh‘oiders_ of the Funds..

15. The fees paid 'to Defendants are technically approved by the Funds’ board of

direcfcjré.l A majority vof v fhe Funds’ boards are comprised of statutonly presurﬁed
“disinterested” directors as that term is defined in § 10 of the ICA. Regardiess of whether these
presumably “disinterested” directbfs lﬁeet the reqﬁirements df § 10 of the ICA, there is a lack of
conscientiousness by the directors in re‘viewing the advisory and distribution fees paid by each of
' the Funds. In addition, even if statutérily disinterested, the directors are in all practical respects

dominated and undculy‘ influenced by Defendants in reviewing the fees paid by Plaintiffs and

other shareholders of the Funds. In particular, Defendants do not provide the directors with

' The term “directors” is used throughout the complaint and should be read as synonymous with “rrustees,” )
as it is under the ICA. See 15 U.S.C,, § 80a-2(2)(12).




suft;xcient information for the directors to fulfill their obligations, a facto; supporting a finding -
‘the;t Defendants have breached their fiduciary duties.

16. Although the fees challengéd iﬁ this lawsuit may appear to the Court to be very
small on a .sha.reholder-by-shareholder basis, they cause a dramatic decrease in Plaintiffs’
inveétment returns over time. MW Léviﬁ,_pg}st Chairman of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”), was critiﬁal of what he called the “tyran.n.y of compounding high costs™: |

Instinct tells me that many inve;tors would be shockled to know how seemingly |

small fees can over time, create such drastic erosion in returns. ... In the years

ahead, what will mutual fund investors say if they realize too late their returns

have fallen hard under the weight of compounding fees?

Arthur Levitt, Jr., Inaugural address: Costs Paid with Other People’s Money, Address at
Fordhém University School of Law (Nov. 3, 2000), in 6 Fordham J. Corp. & Fm L. 261, 267
(2001).

Rule 12b-1 Distribution Plans.

.17.  Prior to 1980, the use of fund assets (which are owned by the shareholders) to sell
new ﬁnd shares was prdhibited. The SEC had historically been relucfant to allow fund advisers
to charge their.sha.reholdlers for"s‘elling shares to othe%s:

[Tlhe cost of selling and purchasing mutual fund shares should be bome by the

investors who purchase them and thus presumably receive the benefits of the

investment, and not, even in part, by the existing shareholders of the fund who
often derive little or no benefit from the sale of new shares.

Statement on the Future Structure of the Securities Markets, [Feb. 1972] Sec. Reg. & L. Rep.
(BNA)No. 137 pt. I, at 7
18. After intense iobbying by the mutual fund industry, the Commission agreed to

consider modifying its objections to allow current fund shareholders to pay distribution

expenses. In early comment letters and in proxy statements proposing adoption of plans of




distribution, the mutuel fund industry argued that‘ed_ding assets to an existing mutual fund would
create economies of scale that would allow the aeivisers to provide the same quaiity'and nature of
“services to mutual fund shareholders at dramatically lower costs: | N

19. Accepfing the mutual fund industry’s er,gument that a growth in assets woeld Iead
to a quid pro quo reducﬁon in advisory fees and other expenses, the Commission tentatively
approved Rule 12b-], 17 C.F.R. § 270.12b-1. However, humeroﬁs copditions were attached to
the use of fund assets to pay distribution expehses; For exaniple, the Commission wented to be
certain that investment advisers would not “extract additional compensation for advisory services
by excessive distributions under a 12b-1 plan.” Meyer V. Oppenheimer Management Corp., 895 -
F.2d 861, 866 (2d Cir. 1990). Unfortunately, that 1s precisely what Defendante have aone: '
extraeted additional compensation for their retail adviso;y serviees by causing Plaintiffs and the
other shareholders to pay Defendants’ marketing expenses to acquire new shareholders so that
these new shareholders could pay additional advisory fees to Defendants. Under this r’egime, ‘
Defendants get the ﬁnancvial benefit, and the shareholders of the Funds bear the financial burden.

20.  Defendants have adopted 12b-] Disﬁibutien Plans for the Funds. These
Distribution Plans must be reviewed annually by the Funds’ directors. In particular, the directors
must “request and evaluate . . . such infonnation as may reasonably b.e vnecessar}./ to an informed
decision of whether such plan should be implerﬁented or continued.” 17 C.FR. § 270.12E-l(d).
.In addition, minutes must be maintained to record all aspects of the direetors’ deliberation, and -
the directors must conclude “in light of their fiduciary duties‘ under state law and under Sections

36(a) and (b) of the ICA, that there is a reasonable likelihood that the Distribution Plans will

benefit the company and its shareholders.” 17 C.FR. § 270.12b;l(e)‘




21. Despite the dramatic growth in assets ménaged by Defendar'l,ts, both the advisory
and distribution fees charged by Defendants have grown, botﬁ in terms of whole dollars and as a.
percentage of assets. Accordingly, the Distriﬁuﬁon Plans have produced littlg OT N0 economies-

: of—éﬁale benefits to t"m shareholders of the Funds. Rather, the DisuibutionvPlé.ns. have served
only Defendants, just as the Commission feared when it found that “the use of mutual fund assets -
to finance distribution activiﬁes would benefit mainly the management of a mutual fund rather
than its shareholders, and therefore that such use of fund‘ assets should not be permitted.”
Bearing of Distribution Expenses by Mutual Funds, Investment»Company Acf Release No. 9915,
1977 SEC LEXIS 943 (Aug. 3.1, 1977). As such, the Distribution Plans violate the intent and
purpose of Rule 12b-1 and are entirely a waste of fund assets. |

22. Furthermore, the distribution fees are based on the net asset value of thé Funds
and not on the ,distribution _ac_tivi;ty, if any, by Defendants, such as number of shares sold. '
Accordihgly, in addition to failing to bengﬁt Plaintiffs a;11d tﬁe other shareholders, the
Distribution ?lms have extracted additional compensation for advisory services to Defendants,
tﬁefeby resulting in éxcessive fees paid to them. For example, any portion of the fees paid 1o
Defendants that are derived from market increases in the net ésset.value of the fund rathef than
any distribution activity by Defendants constitutes additional and excessive compensation f.or‘
advisory services.

23.  Despite the fact that Plaintiffs and £he other shareholders of the‘ Funds have
eﬁjoyed ﬁo beneﬁts'from the Distribution Plans,\ e;ven thoﬁgh they contributed to the growth of

fund assets by paying distribution fees, and despite'the' fact that the Distribution Plans have

allowed Defendants to extract additional and excessive compensation from Plaintiffs and the




.

o‘eher shareholders of the Funds, the directors of the Funds have continued to approve, year after
year, continuation of the Distribution Plans in violatioe of both Rule 12b-1 and § 36(8).
Nature of Claims |

24, In this actien, Plaintiff seeks to rescind tﬁe investment advisory agreements and
Distribution Plans and to recover _the total fees charged by Defendants or, alternatively, to
recover the excess proﬁtsbresulting from economies of scale qungfuily retained Ey Defendants
and to recover other excessive compensation received by, or im(proper payments wrengfully
retained by, Defendants in breach of their fiduciary duty under the ICA § 36(b), 15 U.S.C. § 80a-
35(b). Because the conduct complainedb of herein is continuing‘ in nature, Plaintiffs seek recovery
for a pefiod‘ commencing at the earliest date in light of any applicable statute of limitations
thr‘oughv the date of final judgment after trial.

25.  No pre-suit demand on the board of dlrectors of the Funds 1s requ1red as the
requxrements of FR.C.P. 23.1 do not apply to actlons under § 36(b) of the ICA. Daily Income
Fund v. Fox, 464 U. S 523 (1984).

26.  Plaintiffs do not allege or seek relief for any claims based upon improper market
timing or late trading activity involving the Funds.

. PARTIES
~27.  Plaintiff Robert L. Baker is a resident of Jefferson City, Missouri. He is a‘
shareholder zt all relevant times of the ‘“American‘ Century Select Fund.

28.  Plaintiff Charlyne Van Oosbree is a resident of Jefferson City, Missouri. She is a
shareholder at all relevant times of the American CenMry Growth Fund, and the America.n

Centufy Select Fund.




29.  Plaintiff Don Holcomb is a resident of Jefferson City, Missouri. He 1s the grantor
of a trust for the benefit of ‘his grandchildren which at all relevant times bwns shafés of the
American Century Giftrust VF und. |

30._  Plaintiff ‘Linda ‘Bailey is a resident of Jefferson City, Missouri. She is a _
sha:eholdef ét all relevant times of the American Century Ultra Fund.

31.  Plaintiff Michael J. Reilly is a resident of Largo, Florida. He is a shareholder af
all relevant timeé of the American Century Intematio/nal Discovery Fund.

' ‘32>. Plaintiff Maria I. Reilly is a resident of Largo, Floﬁda. She is a shareholder at all
relevant times of the Meﬂcm Century Global Growth Fund.

33. Plaintiff Leonard Perrier is a resident of O’Fallon, Illinoié. He is a shareholder at
all relevant times of the American Century Ultra Fund.

34. | Plainuff Raymond Hicks is a resident of Troy, Illinois. He is a shareholder at all
relevant t’uﬁes, of the Ameri‘can‘Ce_n‘mry Value Fund, the Ameﬁcan Cenmfyv Ultra Fund aﬁd the
-American Century Global Growth Fund. | |

35. . The American Cexitm*y‘"Select Fund, the American Century Growth Fund, the -
American Century Ultra Fund, the Arﬁerican Century Value Fund, and the American Century
Giftrust Fund are separate series of American Centﬁry Mutual Funds, lnc:, a Marylaﬁd
corporation that is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission undér the
Investment Company Act of 1940 as an ‘open-end management'iﬁvestment company. The
American Century International Discovery Fund and. the American Cenmfy Global Growth Fund
are separate series of American Century World Mutual Funds, Inc., a Maryland corporation that
1s registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Investment Company Act

of 1940 as an open-end management investment company.
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36.  Defendant American Century Investment Management, Inc. (the "A&viscr") 1s a
Delaware corporation and is registered as an investment adviser under the-Invesﬁneﬁt Advisers.
Act of 1940. The Adviser is thé investment adviser to each of the Funds.

37. | Defendant Amerncan Century Investmenf Ser\{ices, Inc. (the "Distributor”) is a
Delaware corporation and is the distributor of the Funds. The »(‘iistributor is fegistered as a
broker-dealer under the laws of Missouri and is the distribﬁtor and principal underwriter of the _
Funds.

| IV. GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

38. The test for determining whether compensation paid to Defendants violates §
36(b5 is “‘essentially whether the fee schedule represents a charge within the range of what would
have been negotiated at arm’s-length in the light of all of the surrounding ci_rcums‘tances.”
Gartenberg v. Merr;’ll Lynch Asséz Management, Inc., 694 F.2d 923,928 (2d Cir. 1982). In order
to violate § 36(b), “the advisor-manéger must chargg a fee that is so disproportionately largé that.
it bears no reasonable rglat;onship to the services rendered and could not have been the product
of arm’s-length bargaining.” /d. |

39.  In applying this test, all pertinent facts must be weighed in detemining whether a
fee or other corﬁpensaﬁon violates § 36(b). The Gartenberg court specifically identified si_;
féctors (a portion of “all pertinent facts”) to be considered in 'determining whether a fee is sé
disproportionately large that it bears ho reasonable relationship to the services rendered. These
factors include: (1) the nature and quality of the services rendered; (2) the profitability of the
funds to the advisor/manager; (3) economies of scale; (4) comparative fee structures; (5) fallout

benefits (i.e. indirect profits to the advisor/manager resﬁlting from the existence of the funds; and
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(6) the care and conscientiousness of the dir:ctdrs. A review of these factors, and the facts in
this case, demonstrates that the fees charged by Defendants to the Funds violate § 36(b).
(1) The Nature and Qﬁ,aliz:v of the Services Provided to the Funds

40. The naﬁﬁe of the investment advisory services provided to the Funds is
straightforward: Defepdants buy and sell, ét théir discretion, stocks, bonds, and other securities
for the Funds. This is precisely the same service providedvto Defendants’ institutional and other
- clients (albeit at 2 dramatically-lower cost). On information and belief, the m‘aterials provided by
Defendants to the directors of the Funds establish that thé nature of these services has remained
unchanged despite dramatic growth in the assets bf the Funds and advisory revenues.

4l Despite the féct that the Funds receive identical investment advisory services as -
Defendants’ sub-adviﬁory, institutional and other clients, on _infofmation and belief, Plaintiffs pay
Défendantg dramatically higher fees 'because thésg féeé are not negotiated at arm’s length as they
_ are with the other clients. | ‘This' disparity in fees evinces Defendants’ willingness and -
determination to prefer their own financial interests to‘ the interests of ﬁie Funds and the
shareholders of the Funds. |

N 42, On information and belief, Defendants repeatedly put their own ﬁna.nci‘al i;ltérests
ahead of the ;mterests of the Funds and the shareholders of the Funds by parﬁcipating in
arrangements and schemes that benefit Defendants at the expense of the Funds and their
shareholders. The cost of this conflict of interest, which does not exist in the case of the arm’s-
length relationships, is manifest not oﬁly in higher fees‘, but in othér losses and expenses bome -
by the Funds and the shareholders of the Funds. These Josses and expenses directly impact the

quality of the investment advisory services Defendants provide to the Funds.




() T he Profitability of the Fund to the Adviser/Manager

43, “[T]he ‘profitability of the fund to the adviser’ [must] be studied in order that the -

“price paid by the fund to its adviser be equivalent to ‘the product of arm’s-length bargaining.’”

See John P. Freeman & Stewart L. Brown, Mutual Fund Advisory Fees: The Cost of Conflicts of

Interest, 26'1. Corp L. 610, 661 (2001) (the “Freeman & Brown Study™) (citing Gartenberg) [EX.

1]. The profitability of a fund to an adviser-manager is a function of revenues minus the costs of
providing services. However, upon information and belief, Defendants’ reporting of ‘their

revenues and costs is intended to, and does, obfuscate Defendants’ true profitability. For

* instance, upon information and belief, Defendants employ inaccurate accounting practices in

their financial reporting, iﬁcluding arbitrafy and unreasonable cost allocations. _
44, | Defendants’ true profitability can be determined on either an incremental basis or
a full-cost basis. Defendants" inc_:rernental costs of providing advisory. services to Plaiﬁtiffs are
nominal,’while the additional fees received b’}‘f Defendants are hugely disproportionate given that
the nature, quality, and ievel of the services remain the same. On information and belief, é
review of Defendants' full costs of providing advisory services will also demonstrate the
enormous profitability to Defendants of managing the Funds.
i (3) Economies of Scale

45, The existence of economies of scale in the mutual fund industry has been recently

confirmed by both the SEC and the Governmental Accounting Office (the “GAO”). Both

conducted in-depth studies of mutual fund fees in 2000, and both concluded _that economies of

scale exist.in the provision of advisory services. See SEC Division of Investment Management:

Report on .Mumal Fund Fees and Expenses (Dec. 2000) (“SEC Report™), at 30-31 [Ex. 2]; GAO,

Report on Mutual Fund Fees to the Chairman, Subcommi‘ctée_ on Finance and Hazardous
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Materials; and the Ranking Member, Committee on Commerce, House of Representatives (June
2000) (“GAO Report™), at 9 [Ex. 3]. | | |

46, . In addition, the most signiﬁcant academic research undertaken since the_Wharton
School study in ;the 1960s establishés the existence of economies of scale that are not being
bassed along to mﬁtual fund shareholders in violation of befendants’ duty to do so under § 36(b)
and Rule 12b-1. See Freema.n.& Brown Study” [Ex. 1]. As the Freeman & Brown Study ﬁot;:d:
“The existence of economies Qf scale bhas been admitted in SEC ﬁliﬁgs made by fund managers
and is implicit in the industry’s frequent use of fee Tates that decrease as assefs under
management increase. Fund industry investment managers are pr§ne to cite economies of scale
as justification for business combinations.” Id. at 620 [Ex '1]‘ |

47, These economies of scale exist not only fund by fund but also exist with'respect |

to‘an entire fund complex and even w1th respect to an investrnem‘advisdr"vs entire scope of
v‘oper‘ations, including services provided té institutional, $ub-édvisory and other clients. Sele
Frcerﬁan & Brown Study at 621 n.62 (quoting Victoria E. ‘Sch‘onfeld & Thomas MJ . Kerwin, .
Orgzmization of a Mutual Fﬁnd, 49 Bus. Law 107 (1993)) [Ex. 1]. |

48.  The clearest example of economies of scale occurs when total assets under
ma.nagefn'ent increase due pureiy to market forces (without.t‘he institution of new advisqry
relationships or ‘new asset gathering). In such inétﬁnces, as the GAO confirms, it is possible for
. the advisor to service the additional assets with zero additional costs. See GAO Report at 9
(noting that growth from portfolio appreciation is unaccompanied by costs) [Ex. 3]. In other »
words, an Investment advisor can advisé a fund that doubles in size pu.rély because of market
forces with no increased costs because the services are vunchan’ged.‘ Se‘e GAO Report at 9 [Ex. 3];

Freeman & Brown Study at 619 n.43, 621 (noting that investment advisors have benefited by
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gamering “incfeased fees from the generél increase in market prices with no commeﬁsurate
efforts on their part” and also noting that as much as 64‘% of mutual fund asset growth has come
from appreciation of portfolio securities, which, unlike growth frdm share sales to new‘investors,
is costless) [Ex. 1]. , : -

49, Prdm 1993 through 2002, Defendants’ assets .under management grew frqm $22
billion to nearly $64 .billion, an increase of néarly two and a half times. .Howev'er, this
pﬁenomenal growth ‘in mutual fund assets ndt onlf p;oduced no economies of scale, but fees for
the Fund Complex as a whole actually increased faster,than fhe growth in a.ss.ets. Fees went from
$203 million in 1993 to $597 miliion in 2002. Fees as a percentagé of average net assets
inéreased from 91% 1in 1993 to 93% in 2002. The foregoing figures make a mockery of the
concept of economieé of scale. '

50.  Further evidence of Defendants' refusal to pass. along economies of scale -to’
Plaintiffs and‘ oﬂ;xer shareholders c;f the Funds is the advisory fee bréakpoint levels for vthe F}xnd;..
For example, ‘the adviséry fee sn'ucﬁlre"for the American Century Ultra Fund, Investor Cléss
Shares, 1s currentl_‘y 1.00% (100 basis points) Qf the first $20 billion in assets, .950% (95 basis
points) of the next $10 billion, .925% (92.5 basis points) of the next $10 billion,‘and .900% (50
basis points) of assets in excess of $40 billion. Tﬁe first breakpoint occurs, then, when the fund
reaches 320 billion in ass.ets. By Way of contrast, when Defendants' act as. sub-advisors to
mutual funds controlled by third parties, the first breakpoint 1n their sub-advisory fee typically
bégins at the'$50 million - $100 million level. (See paragraph 42,‘ infra.) |

5. The ecdﬁomies of scale enjoyed by.Defenda.nts with respect to the Funds have not

* been shared with Plaintiffs as required by § 36(b) and Rule 12b-1. As a result, the fees paid to




Defendeants for advisory services prévided to the Pundé@re gfossly dispmportionate to those
services, are excessive, and violate § 36(b).
(4) Comparative Fee Structures
52. The fees advisors receive from mﬁtual funds fof investment advisory serv‘ices' are
diréctly comparable to, though much higher than, the fees advisors receive from other clients for
the identical sebr'vices. As ‘the Freeman & Brown Study noted: “None bf the leading advisory fee
céses involved equity funds, and hence, none of the courts were confronted directly with the
strong analogies that can be draQn between equity advisory services in the fund industry as
compared to the iaension field where prices aré notably iower.” Freeman & Brown Study at 653
[Ex. 1]. While a “manager may encounter different ievels of fixed and variable research costs
depending on the type of the portfolio, . . . the ‘fundamental management process is essentiaﬂy
the same for large and small portfolios, as well as for pension funds and mutual funds. The A
portfolio éwnef’s 'identity‘ (pension fund versus inﬁfual fund) shoﬁld not logically provide a
reasén for poﬁfolio management costs being higher or lower.” Freeman & Brown Study at 627-
28 [Ex. 1]. .Ipdeed, “a mutual fund, as an entity, actually is an institutional investor. When ifc
comes to fee discrepancies, the difference between funds_ and other institutional investors doés
- Dot turn on‘ ‘institutional status,’ 1t turns onfself—dealin‘g and conflict of imerest.‘” Freeman &
Brown Study at 629 n.‘93 [Ex. 1]. Accordingly, the “‘apples-to-apples’ fee comparisons between
equity pension manag‘ers and equity‘ fund managers can be most difficult and ¢mbarfassing for
_ those selling advice to mutual funds.” Freeman & Brown Study at 671-72 [Ex. 1]. | .
53.  More recently, New York’s Attomey Gehcral surveyed two fund complexes aﬁd
confirmed the existence of massive over-charging of fund advisory fees. Specifically, Mr.

Spitzer testified before a Senate Subcommittee on January 27, 2004, as follows:
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Putnam’s mutual fund investors were charged 40 percent more for advisory
services than Putnam’s institutional investors. In dollar terms, what this fee disparity -
means is that in 2002 Putnam mutual fund investors paid $290 million more in advisory
fees than they would have paid had they been charged the rate given to Putnam’s
institutional clients, and these are for identical services.

There was a similar disparity in the advisory fees charged by Alliance. Oncé
again, mutual fund investors were charged significantly higher advisory fees than
institutional investors. Specifically, Alliance’s mutual fund investors paid advisory fees
that were twice those paid by institutional investors. In dollar terms, this means that
Alliance investors paid more than $200 million more in advisory fees than they would
have paid had they been charged the rate given to Alliance’s institutional clients.

54. On information and belief, the shareholders of the Funds at issue here are plagued
“by the same discriminatory over-charging by Defendants as the shareholders of the funds
mentioned by Mr. Spitzer in his Senate testimony. Indeed, a number of relevant comparative fee
 structures clearly establish that Defendants are charging advisory fees to the Funds that are

disproportionate to the value of the sérvices rendered.

55. The Adviser serves as the sub-adviser to. the AXP Partners Aggressive Growth:
Fund, and receives a fee of 50 basis poi:its of the first $100 million in assets, 45 basis points of

- the next $150 million in assets, 40 basis points of the next $250 million in assets, and 38 basis
points of assets in excess of 500 million.

56. The Adviser serves as the sub-adviser to the IDEX American Century
International Fund, and receives a fee of 60 basis points of the first $50 million in assets, 55 basis
points of the next $100 million, 50 basis points of the next $350 million in assets, and 45 basis
points for assets in excess of $500 million.

57.  The Adviser serves as the sub-adviser o the IDEX American Century Income and

Growth Fund, and receives a fee of 50 basis points of the first $100 million in assets, 45 basis

points of the next $150 million, and 40 basis points of assets in excess of $250 million.
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5 8; An affiliate of the Defendants performs institutional investment éd_visory services.
The fee charged for iﬁves‘cmént advisory services ?endered to thc. Arizona Stgte Retirement
System for managing an active large cap equity account with $1.1 billion in assets was Just 14
Basis points in 1999. The fee charged for investment advisory services rendered té the New
York Staﬁe Common Retirement F‘und for managing a lar‘ge cap equity account with $1.4 billion
in assets was just 16.7 basié points in 1999.

(5) Fallout Benefits

59. Defendants indirectly profit because of the existenc/:e bf the Funds through fallout
benefits. Obvjous, but difﬁéult to. quantify fallout benefits include the attraction of new
customers, Ccross seiling related funds to current customers, and other benefits associated
generally with the de\}elopment of goodwill and the grow%h m asséts of the Funds.

60.  Other, easier to quantify, beneﬁfs include “spﬁ dollars” payable from broker-
dealers. Essentially, “soft dollérs” are credits furnished to Defendan.ts from broker-dealers and
other secu:ities;industry firms in exchange for roﬁting the Funas’ securities u-ansac;cion orders

and other business to paying firms. These soft-dollar credits should be used to pu:chése research
and other goods or services that benefit ‘;he shareholders of the Funds. bn information and
belief, however, the soft-dollar arrangements benefit Defend;nts and result in increased costs to
the sha:éholders of the Funds with little to no cérr¢spondmg Beneﬁts té the shareholders of the
 Funds. On information and belief, the soft dollar arrangementé are concealed from the
shareholders of the Funds in breach of Defendants’ fiduciary duty.

61. On information and belief, Defendants also receive “kickbacks,” either 'directl_y or
indirectly, as transfer agency and custodian fees grow due to increases in the assets of the Funds

and the number of shareholders.
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62. On information and belief, Defendants receis/ev further fallout benefits from
 securities iending arrangements. Essentially, Defendants loan out the securities of the F uqu and
receive compensation as the lending agents of the Funds.

63. A highly prcﬁtable fallout benefit to Defendants is the ability to sell investment
advisory services paid for by the Funds at Qiftually no additional cost. Much like computer
software, once the investment research and resulting recommendetions afe paid for,'tha’t’researcb
and those recommendations mey be sold to other ch'ents at virtually no cost whatsoever to
Defendants. Without payfnent by Plaintiffs and cther shareholders of the Funds of millions of
dollars in advisory and distribution fees (especially distribution fees that are nothing more tlcan a
. means tovextract additional compeﬁsation for advisory ser;zices); Defendants would have to pay
to conduct -thaf research independently in order to provide investment advisory services to other
clients, inclcclihg institutional clients. This is a n_aturai byproduct of the extraordin@ econornies
of scale inherent iﬁ the investmenf advisorf business; Howeuver, although Plaintiffs a.nd other .
shareholders of the Funds pay all of the costs associated wifh the investment advisory services,
Defendants resell these services to third parties without compensatmg Plaintiffs through reduced
fees or in any other way. |

64.  On information and belief, Defendants do not provide sufficient information
regarding the existence andv extent of these and other fallout beneﬁts to-the shareholders of the
Funds or to the Funds’ directors. The directors are thus unable to quantify or even meaningfully
consider the benefits. Plaintiffs and other shareholders of the Funds have paid for these benefits
and are entitled 10 compensation in the form of reduced acvisofy fees and the eliminaticn of

distribution fees.
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(6) The Independence and Conscientiousness of the Diréctors
65. - At least 40% of the Funds’ directors must be “disinterested” as defined in § 10 of
the JCA. Asthe GAO Repoﬁ noted, the structure of most mutual funds embodies a potential
conflict of interest between the fund’s shareholders and its adviser. This conflict gri'ses because
. the fees paid by the shareholders represent revenue to the adviser. Thé United Staies Supreme
Court has stated that fhe 'disinte'res‘ted-di'rector requirement is “the-comerstone -of the ICA’s |
efforts to control” this conflict of interest. Burks v. Laskef, 441U.8. 471 (1979).
66..  The disinterested directofs are supposed to serve as “watchdogs” for th¢
_ shareholders of the Funds. As such, the disiniere_sted directors have primary responsibility for, -
among many other things, negotiating and approving all contracts and agreements with
Defendanfs and réviewing the reasonableneés of the advisory and distribution fees recéived by
Defendants. Accordingly, as noted by the GAO, the directors are expected to review, among |
other things, the advisor’s costs, whether fees have béen reduced when the Funds’ assets have
~ grown, and the fees chérged for similar services. See GAO Report at 14 [‘Ex. 3]. These
respénsibilities are intensive, requiring the directors to rely on information provided by
Defgndaﬁts. De.fendants, in turn, have a fiduciary duty to‘ provide all information reasonably
necessary for the directors to perform their obligations. Seé 15 U.S.C.; § 80a-15(c); '17 CFR.§
270.12b-1.

' 67.  The ICA contains a pfesumption that the disinterested directors are in fact
disinterested. However, the lack of conscientiousneés of even disinterssted directors in
reviewing the fees paid by the Funds, the»lack of adequate information provided to the directors
in connection with their approvals of the acivisory agreements and Distributién Plans, and the

control of management over the directors in reviewing the fees paid by the Funds are not
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presumed but, rather, are important factors recognized in the Gartenberg line of cases in
determining whether Defendants have breached their fiduciary duties. In‘ addition, the SEC has
specifically recognized' that even disinterested direc;cors may not be independent but, rather, may
be subject to dominatioh orundue influence by a fund’s investment adviser. For éxample, the
SEC has stated that “disinterested directors should not be entrusted with a decision on use of
fund assets for distribution without r¢ceiving the beneﬁt.of measures designed to enhance their
ability to act independently.” Bearing of Distribution Expenses by Mutual Funds, Investment
" Co. ActRel. No. 11414, 1980 SEC LEXIS 444 at *36 (Oct. 28, 1980).
68. " TWo noteworthy industry insiders have commented on the general failure of

mutual fund boards to fulfill their responsibilities under the ICA. Jack Bogle, founder of tﬁe
Vanguard Group, made the following comment: |

Well, fund directors are, or at least to a very major extent, sort of a
bad joke. They've watched industry fees go up year after year,

they've added 12b-1 fees. I think they've forgotten, maybe they've

never been told, that the law, the Investrnent Company Act, says

they're required to put the interest of the fund shareholders ahead of

the interest of the fund adviser. It's simply impossible for me to see

how they could have ever measured up to that mandate, or are

measuring up to it.

Warren Buffet, famous investor and chairman of Berkshire Hathaway, Inc. made the following ‘
comment, which was receritly quoted by a United States District Court:

I think independent directors have been anything but independent.
The Investment Company Act, in 1940, made these provisions for
independent directors on the theory that they would be the watchdogs
for all these people pooling their money. The behavior of
independent directors in aggregate since 1940 has been to rubber
stamp every deal that's come along from management—whether
management was good, bad, or indifferent. Not negotiate for fee
reductions and so on. A long time ago, an attorney said that in
selecting directors, the management companies were looking for
Cocker Spaniels and not Dobermans. I'd say they found a lot of
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Cocker Spaniels out there. Strougo v. BEA Assoc., 188 F. Supp.2d
373,383 (S.D.N.Y. 2002) (citation omitted). o

Mr. Buffet has also stated, in his letter to shareholders in the 2002 Berkshire
' Hathaway, Inc. annual report:

"[A) monkey will type out a Shakespeare play before an "independent"
mutual-fund director will suggest that his fund look at other managers,
even if the incumbent manager has persistently delivered substandard
_performancé. When they are handling their own money, of course,
directors will look to alternative advisors — but it never enters their
minds to do so when they are acting as fiduciaries for others. . . .
Investment company directors have failed as well in negotiating
‘management fees : . .. If you or I were empowered, I can assure you
that we could easily negotiate materially lower management fees with
the incumbent managers of most mutial funds. And, believe me, if
directors were promised a portion of any fee savings they realized, the
skies would be filled with falling fees. Under the current system,
though, reductions mean nothing to "independent” directors while
meaning everything to managers. So guess who wins? . . . [I]n

. stepping up to [their] all-important responsibilities, tens of thousands
of "independent" directors, over more than six decades, have failed
miserably. (They've succeeded, however, in taking care of
themselves; their fees from serving on multiple boards of a single
"family” of funds often run well into six figures.) 2002 Berkshire
Hathaway, Inc. Annual Report to Shareholders, p. 17 - 18. '

69.  As part of their scheme to receive excessive fees, Defendants did not keep the
directors‘ﬁllly informed regarding all material facis and aspects of their fees and other
compensatibn, énd the directors failed to insist upon adequate information. For example:

a. | On information and belief, Defendants provided virtually no infor.'mat'ion 10
| th¢ directors regarding the a&visory fees charged to pension and other institutional clients
- or to other mutual funds being advised or sub-advise‘d by Defendants. |
b. On information and belief, Defendants proVidéd virﬁlally no information to
the directofs regarding the economies of scale enjoyed or fallout benefits received by |

" Defendants.




c':. On information and belief, the proﬁtaﬁility data given to the board of
directors provide no explanation as to how the board should evaluate economies of scale.

d. On information and belief, the board of directors of the Funds failed to
request and évaluate, and Defeﬁdants failed to provide, information reasonably necessary

" toan iﬁfonned determination of whether the Distribution Plans should have been

implemented and ‘whether‘they should be continued.

e, On inforfnation and belie:f, thé directors rarely, if ever, quéstion any
information or recommendations provided by Defendants.

70. The foregoing assures that the directors do not understand Defendants’ true cost
structure yand,Ain particular, thé.economies of sca1¢ enjoyed by them in providing investrﬁenf |
advisory services to the Funds ana their institutional and other clients.

71. On information and belief, the disinterested'di.rectors of the Funds have not
received the benefit of any measures to enhé.née their ability to act indépéridently, which has
caused thé directérs to be depeﬁdent on Défcndants' and haé allowed Defendants. t0 domina’_ce and
'unduly influence the directors. In addition, the directors’ fa,il‘ure to ins.ist on adequate
information evinces a lack of care and conscientiousness on their part.

COUNT 1
. ICA §36(b)
BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY
(Excessive Investment Advisory Fees)

72.  Plaintiffs repéat and re-allege each allegation contain'ed’ in the foregoin.g

paragraphs of this Complaint as if fﬁlly set forth‘he-rein.
| 73.  The fees charged by Defendants for providing advisory services to the Funds are

and continue to be disproportionate to the services rendered and are not within the range of what
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would have béen negotiated at‘aum’s length in light of all the surrounding circumstances,
including the advisory fees that Defendants charge their other clients.

74, In chargin‘g and receiving excessive or inappropriate compensation, and in failing
to puf the interests of F"'laimiffsv and the other shareholders of the Fundé ahead of their own
interests, Defendants have breached and continue to breach their statutory fiduciary duty to

‘Plaintiffs in violation of ICA § 36(b).

75. Plaintiffs seek, ﬁursuant to § 36(b)(3) of the ICA, the “actual damages resulting
; frém_the breach of fiduciary ciuty” by Defendaﬁts, up to and including, “the amount of
| compensation or payments received from” the Funds. |

COUNT II
ICA § 36(b)
. BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY
(Excess Profits from Economies of Scale)

76.  Plaintiffs repeat and ;e-allege each allegation contained in the foregoing

paragraphs of this Complaint as if fully set forth herein. | |

| -77. Defeﬁdants have received and continue to Teceive excess profits attributable to
extraordinary economies of scale and, ironically, at least in part at Plaintiffs’ expense in the form
of payment of distribution fees benefiting oniy Defendants.

78. By retaining e}iéess profits der_‘ived from economies of scale, Defendants have
breached and continge to breéch their statutory fiduciary duty to Plaintiffs in violation of ICA §
36(b). | |

79. | 'Plaintiffs seek, pursuant td § 36(b)(Bj of the ICA, the “actual damages resulting

~ from the breach of fiduciary duty” by Defendants, up to and including, the “amount of

. compensation or payments received from” the Funds.
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COUNT 111
ICA § 36(b)
BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY
(Excessive Rule 12b-1 Distribution fees and Extraction of
Additional Compensation for Advisory Services)

80.  Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each‘allegation contained in the foregoing
paragraphs of this Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

81.  The distribution fees charged and received by Defendants were designed to, and
did, extract additional compensatidn for Defendants’ advisory services in violation of
Defendants’ fiduciary duty under § 36(b). Although the distribution fees may have contributed
to the growth in assets of the Funds, the resulting economies of scale benefited only Defendants,
and not Plaintiffs or the Funds.

82. In failing to pass along economies-of-scale benefits from the distribution fees,' and
in continuing to assess distribution fees pursuant to plans of distribution despite the fact that no
benefits inured to Plaintiffs, Defendants have violated, and continue to violate, the ICA and have
breached and continue to breach their statutory fiduciary duty to Plaintiffs in violation of ICA §
36(b).

83, Plaintiffs seek, pursuant to § 36(b)(3) of the ICA, the “actual damages resuhing'
from the breach of fiduciary duty” by Defendants, up to and including, the “amount of
compensation or payments received from” the Fuﬁds.

COUNT IV
ICA § 12(b)
- (Unlawful Distribution Plans)

84. - Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each allegation contained in the foregoing

paragraphs of this Complaint as if fully set forth herein.




-85, Plaintiffs and the other shareholders in the Funds each paid service or distribution
fees to Defendants. o |
86. When Defendants first initiated the Distribution Plans, they represented that‘the
distribution fees were being collected in order fo, at least in part, ;grow the assets of the Funds in
order to reduce the cost to Plaintiffs of providing advisory services, Only one of the following
alternatives could possibly ha\}e_éccurred:
a. The Funds grew as a result of the payment of distribution fees and Iﬁarket forces,v
in which case economies of scal~e were geﬁerated but not passed on to Plaintiffs o?
the Funds; or
b. The distribution fees did not contribute to economies of scale, produced no other
material benefits for Plaintiffs and the other shareholders of the Funds, and should
not have been approved or continued. | |
87.  Either way, Defendants have violatéd § 12(b) of the ICA and Rule 12b-1, 17
C.F.R.§270.12b-1, by acceptmg excéssive or inappropriate compensation in violat_ion of the
ﬁ‘duciary‘dutly owed by them to the Funds. Defendants violation of § 12(b‘) and Rule 12b-1 is-
continuing in ﬁature. _
88.  Plaintiffs seek damages resulting from the adoption and continuation of these

unlawful Distribution Plans.v

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demand judgment as follows:
a An order declaring that Defendants have violated and continue to violate §
36(b), § 12(b), and Rule 12b-1 of the ICA and that any advisory or distribution

agreernents entered into are void ab initio;

26



b. | An order preliminarily and permanently enjoining Defendants from further
violations of the ICA;

¢. An order awarding damages against Defendants including all fees paid to
them by Plaintjffs and the Funds for all pefiods not precluded by ahy appiicable
statutes of limjtatioﬁ through the trial of thls casé, together with interest, costs,
disbursements, attorneyé’ fees, and isuch’ ofher items as mgy_be allowed to the
maximum extent permitted by law; and

d. Such other and further relief as may be proper and just.

Dated: January 14, 2005.

By: /s Becky Ferrell-Anton

Guy M. Burns, Pro Hac Vice
Jonathan S. Coleman, Pro Hac Vice
Becky Ferrell-Anton, Pro Hac Vice
Audrey Rauchway, Pro Hac Vice
JOHNSON, POPE, BOKOR
RUPPEL & BURNS, LLP ,
403 East Madison Street, Ste. 400
Tampa, FL 33602

(813) 225-2500

- Wm. Dirk Vandever (#24463)
THE POPHAM LAW FIRM, P.C..
323 W. 8” Street, Suite 200
Kansas City, Missouri 64105
(816) 221-2288

Michael J. Brickman, Pro Hac Vice
James C. Bradley, Pro Hac Vice
Nina H. Fields, Pro Hac Vice
" RICHARDSON, PATRICK, WESTBROOK
& BRICKMAN LLC
174 East Bay Street
Charleston, SC 29401
(843) 727-6500

Attorneys for Plaintiffs
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